Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
August 11, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
‘Tuesday August 11, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
CIiff Braty, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David Gaskins.

Others present were Pamlico County Manager Tim Buck, Pamlico Water Department
Operations Manager Jeff Sanders, Pamlico County contract engineer Blaine Humphrey,
Pamlico County Commissioner Missy Baskerville, Pamlico County Tax Administrator Lesli¢
Young, Pamlico County Finance Officer Bill Fentress, Arlington Place Manager Becca Lang,
Town Residents Trent Holland and Barbara James, Town Manager Carolyn Braly and Town
Clerk Donna Scott,

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, July 14, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the August 11, 2020 agenda.
Mayor Fowler asked to add under miscellaneous COVID-19 testing,
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to accept the amended agenda. All ayes.

Public Comments: Barbara James, of 244 Neuse River Drive, said she is one of the
residents affected by the recent water outages. She asked what are the short-term solutions,
what are the long-term solution and who was going to pay for all of this? Mayor Fowler
thanked her for her questions and said the folks who have the answers are here tonight.

Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

1. Mayor Fowler introduced Mr. Tim Buck, Pamlico County Manager. Mr.
Buck said he was going to address the waterline issues and the County tax assessment.
Mr. Buck introduced Mr. Jeff Sanders, Operations Manager of the Water Dept and Mr.
Blaine Humphrey, contract engineer who has been working with the water issues. He
also introduced Mr. Bill Fentress, Finance director, and Ms. Leslie Young, tax
administrator who will address the County Tax assessment procedures.

Mr. Buck said he appreciated everyone’s patience with the water outages. He
said this issue has been ongoing since July 2", He said at one point they got a “good”
sample report and lifted the “Low Pressure Advisory.”” Mr. Buck rcported that a
resident did do a home test that was not good. He said normally there are 1ssues with

08/11/2020 BOC meeting 1



those tests because of other things in a household that can give false positives. Mr.
Buck said they followed up and sent staff out to take additional samples and confirmed
there were still issues with the water. Tt was testing positive for coliform, but not E.
coli. He explained the processes they used over the next couple of weeks: added
chlorine and increased flushing of hydrants. He said they will begin a different type of
testing tomorrow to eliminate other causes of the problem. They will be testing for
nitrates, nitrites and other things. Mr. Buck said they are considering adding another
tap in the problem area so they can introduce a low dose of chlorine in that particular
section. They will also do a pressure test to eliminate a secondary leak somewhere. He
reported that Jeff Sanders took 4 samples yesterday (August 10, 2020) and the results
received today were good. They were negative for coliform and E. coli. Samples were
taken again today. If those samples are good, the Low-Pressure Advisory will,
hopefully, be lifted tomorrow. Mr. Buck said it has been recommended to put an
automatic flush device at the end of Neuse River Drive to increase flow in this area to
help maintain the chlorine residual. He reported that one of the residents will be placed
on a monthly testing schedule.

Mr. Buck said the long-term solution to the waterline is to extend it all the way
down Bennett Road. This was approved at the last County Board of Commissioners’
meeting. Mr. Humphrey said that currently the biggest issue is to get a higher chlorine
residual down to Minnesott Beach. He said there is a big drop of chlorine residual from
Arapahoe to Bennett Road along 306. He reported they will continue flushing on a
regular basis to keep the chlorine residual up in this area. Commissioner Braly asked
what the effective time Jrame of chlorine in slow moving or stagnant water is. Mr.
Humphrey answered 7-10 days. Commissioner Braly commented that the flushing
timetable, to keep the effectiveness of chlorine, would be to flush the lines every 7-10
days. Mr. Humphrey said that was correct. The drop in chlorine residual is a resolute of
lack of water flow. He further explained they did water pressure tests to make sure
there was no breaks in the line. Mr. Buck said at the last County Commissioners’
meeting, they talked about the bills of the affected residents. They did not send the
August bills out to those residents. There will be a policy regarding situations like this
recommended at the next meeting. A question was raised about who was paying for all
the testing being done. Mr. Buck said right now the system is paying for this. They are
looking into charging the person responsible for the break in the line, but that has not
been decided.

Mayor Fowler asked about Country Club Drive West. Mr. Buck said they will
replace the waterline under the intersection of Country Club Drive West and Bennett
Road. They have replaced the valve there and do not expect any loss of service. DOT
just need do their thing.

Mayor Fowler asked about the tax assessment process and what citizens can do
if they have questions. Mr. Buck asked if there were specific questions. Commissioner
Garfinkel said there did not seem to be a consistency in the evaluations. One house
evaluation went up and another’s house value went down. Commissioner Campen said
his went up substantially. Ms. Leslie Young said the evaluations in Pamlico County
were done over the past couple years. They do not look at every piece of property.

This is done every 8 years. The values are based on comparisons of alike properties
that have sold in the previous two years and only use propetties in the county. There

08/11/2020 BOC meeting



are specific guidelines that apply. The deadline to appeal the evaluation was June 1,
2020. The tax rate cannot be appealed. She said Minnesott Beach had an overall 5%
increase in value. Ms. Young said she wants the taxpayers to have due process, so they
have waived the deadline for an appeal. She passed out applications for an appeal to
those who wanted one. The tax board would decide if the appeal is valid. Mr. Buck
said the taxpayer should always look at their tax card to make sure the information on it
is correct. A couple of residents spoke specifically about their situations. Ms. Young
advised them to gather their information and come to se¢ her.

Mayor Fowler asked Mr. Buck to explain the COVID-19 funds made available
to Minnesott Beach. Mr. Buck said the federal government rolled out the COVID-19
funding to the state which in turn passed it on to local governments. Pamlico County
received an initial allotment of $457,000.00 and a second allotment of $246,000.00 of
which approximately $176.000.00 had to go out to municipalities. Mr. Buck said the
county is using these funds for the health department, emergency managements,
emergency responders which includes first responders and law enforcement which most
of our municipalities do not have. Minnesott Beach will receive $14,358.20 for
COVID-19 funding. The is amount is based on per capita of the town. Mr. Buck said
as soon as the Mayor signed the agreement and returned it to the county, the funds
would be disbursed. The deadline for apply is 24", The town is responsible for
accounting for the spending of these funds. Anything not spent under the specific
COVID guidelines by the end of December must be returned to the county.
Commissioner Garfinkel was assured that anything not used by the Town would be
used by the County.

Missy Baskerville said she was available to address and present any issues the
town or its residents have to the county commissioners. Mayor Fowler thank her and
assured her the Town has had excellent response from the County Manager Tim Buck
regarding the water issues and the Country Club Drive West culvert issue.

Commissioner Campen asked what the County Commissioners and Pamlico
County could do to persuade the ferry system to resume the regular schedule for
Minnesott Beach/Cherry Branch ferry. Residents of Pamlico County are being severely
impacted. Mayor Fowler said he was writing a letter to Senator Sanderson and Rep.
Hanig with copies to the NC Ferry System and Tim Buck.

Mayor Fowler thanked the County representatives for coming to the meeting.

2. Marina violation: Mayor Fowler reported the State Department of
Environmental Quality investigated Wayfarers Cove. Specifically, they looked at the
recent clearing and excavation of land. On July 15, they issued a Notice of Violation.
Mayor Fowler reported all commissioners had received a copy. After talking with the
investigator, Mayor Fowler said the marina had received a second Notice of Violation
(or an extension of the original notice, he said he was not sure) on the property along
the river front and channel leading into the marina basin. They have responded to the
first notice. Mayor Fowler said they have hired Avolis Engineering and a surveyor to
help them through the process. Mayor Fowler said the citizens adjacent to the marina
property are upset with what was going on there. There was an initial $5,000 fine with

08/11/2020 BOC meeting



a potential $5,000 per day fine if they did not comply with the orders of the violation.
Commissioner Garfinkel and Braly discussed the total lack of compliance to the Town’s
ordinances.

Town Manager’s report: Mrs. Braly said there were two zoning permits applied
for. Mr. Baum of Indian Bluff Drive applied for shed and Kevin Peacock on Neuse
River Drive applied for fence. Both were approved.

Mrs. Braly said she posted on the Town’s webpage the sale of the small trailer
for two weeks and there were no inquiries. Commissioner Gaskins said there is a
webpage that municipalities can post sale items. He said he thought this was the way to
go and be legal. Mrs. Braly said she would check into it.

Planning Board: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the board met the previous
week for the specific purpose to discuss the Arlington Place Phase 3 portion of the
revised Master Plan. He said the Planning Board voted 6 to 0 in favor of
recommending the town accept the revised preliminary Master Plan as presented so
Arlington Place can move forward with their plans. He added, with the understanding
the plans do not present square footage specific site structure parameters. They have
statements such as “this area is reserved for cottages.” The Planning Board can say
nothing was identified in “this™ plan that goes beyond what is allowed. He said there
are certain areas that states they are reserved for future amenities; we are assuming they
will fal] within the accepted list. Until such time as they present a completed Master
Plan will the Planning Board be able to recommend approval. Commissioner Garfinkel
asked if Ms. Becca Lang had anything to add. She said they wanted to make sure they
were on the right path before committing to the costly detailed surveys required. Ms.
T.ang said what they are looking for from the commissioners tonight is the approval of
the change in the Master Plan so they can proceed. Commissioner Garfinkel moved to
recommend the Commissioners approve the revised sketch plan as approved by the
Planning Board. Commissioner Gaskins asked what this allows Arlington Place to do?
Ms. Lang said it ailows them to proceed with the detailed changes to the Master Plan as
allowed by the Town’s ordinances. Mayor Fowler asked for any further discussion.
There being none, he asked for a vote. All ayes.

Town Projects — Commissioner Braly reported Country Club Drive West is proceeding
as well as could be expected. He reported he had talked with Charles Register to clean
out the town’s right-of-way at the mobile home court. Mr. Register has submitted a
quote to “clean out the vegetation out of ditch on Country Club Drive and haul to the
dump.” The cost to haul and the tipping fee is $60 per load. He figures it will take 6
loads. Land fill charges are $50/per ton. His estimate is $1,160.00 plus the tonnage
fee. Commissioner Braly moved to accept the quote. All ayes.

Commissioner Garfinkel asked if the town was going to pick limb and leat debris from
the recent storm. Town Manager and Clerk said they had received several calls asking
and folks were told not at this time.

Commissioner Gaskins asked if anything was going to be dong¢ about the drainage
issues on Bennett Court. Commissioner Braly told him nothing at this time. He said

08/11/2020 BOC mecting



Ken Heath was going to shoot the property elevations and give recommendations but
had not done so yet. Commissioner Braly said the town does not go in private property
to repair drainage issues. Commissioner Campen said that was wrong. Commissioner
Braly asked what he would recommend.

Commissioner Campen asked about the curve sign. Town Manager said Roosevelt and
Thomas had been asked to attach the sign to a post. That had been done but it had not
been put on the road, yet. She said she would call Thomas the next day.

Financial Report: Commissioner Gaskins reported all was within the budgeted
amounts. The Town’s current assets as of July 31, 2020 are: First Citizen's Bank
Checking $4,918.69; First Citizen's Bank MM $321,753.08; United Bank savings
$219,292.95; North Carolina Management Trust is $211,475.77; Petty Cash $50.00.
Total assets for the Town are $1,016,278.87.

Miscellaneous; Mayor Fowler reported Ken Heath, Mayor of Arapahoe, had called and
asked if Minnesott Beach would like to join with Arapahoe in offering the COVID-19
testing at the First Baptist Church in Arapahoe August 22" beginning at 8:00am. He
reported as of this date, Minnesott Beach had 21 folks signed up. All the information 1s
posted on the Town’s webpage. Mayor Fowler reported that two tests were being
offered: a swab test for active COVID and a blood test for antibodies. Commissioner
Gaskins asked how do we get the word out to our residents who do not have internet?
Mayor Fowler said a notice is in the paper and the town has sent a bulk email to
residents and asked they notify their neighbors. Mayor Fowler said the necessary forms
can be downloaded from the town’s website or they may be picked up a copy here in
the Town Hall.

Mayor Fowler said he would get a letter out this week to our state representatives
regarding the ferry.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn. All Ayes.

own Manager

08/11/2020 BOC meeting



